














 

 
     

 

  
 

 
  

 
    

 
 

  
  
    

 
  
 

  
 
 

  
  
 

 

    
          

   
 

     
 

    
         

    
  

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

    
 

  
  

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

FRIDAY 8:30 A.M. October 24, 2019 

PRESENT: 
Bob Lucey, Washoe County Commissioner, Chairman (arrived 9:55) 

Neoma Jardon, Reno City Council Member, Vice Chair 
Bonnie Weber, Reno City Council Member (alternate) 
Vaughn Hartung, Washoe County Commissioner 

Ron Smith, Sparks City Council Member 

Lee G. Gibson, RTC Executive Director 
Dale Ferguson, Legal Counsel 

Kristina Swallow, Director of NDOT 
NOT PRESENT: 

Oscar Delgado, Reno City Council Member 

The regular monthly meeting, held in the Chambers of the Washoe County Commission, 1001 E. 
9th Street, Reno, Nevada, was called to order by Vice Chair Jardon. Following the roll call and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of our country, the Board conducted the following business: 

PRESENTATION OF THE NEVADA STRATEGIC SAFETY PLAN AWARDS IN 
RECOGNITION OF THE VISION ZERO TRUCKEE MEADOWS INITIATIVE 

Amy Davy, Director of the Nevada Office of Traffic Safety and State Highway Safety 
Coordinator, spoke in recognition of the RTC and its partners for the Project of the Year – the 
Truckee Meadows Vision Zero Project. Additionally, Ms. Rebecca Kapuler, RTC Senior 
Technical Planner, was awarded with the Transportation Professional of the Year for her tireless 
work to ensure the success of the Vision Zero Truckee Meadows Task Force.  

Ms. Kapuler thanked everyone on the task force and the local entities for their contributions to the 
project. 

Vice Chair Jardon thanked everyone involved for their participation in making this project such a 
great success. 

Item 1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Executive Director Lee Gibson requested that Item 2.2 be removed from the agenda as there were 
no advisory committee meetings to report on and it was inadvertently left on the agenda. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 1 



 

 
     

 

  
        
   

 
    

 
   

  
   

 
   

 
   

 
     

    
    

 
 

     
 

 
   

 

 
     

 
 

     
 

 

 
     

 

 
      

 
  

 
  

    
 

    
  

   
  

 

 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, which motion 
unanimously carried, Vice Chair Jardon ordered that the agenda for this meeting be approved by 
those present. 

Item 2 .1 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda. 

There being no one wishing to speak, the Vice Chair closed public input. 

Items 3 CONSENT ITEMS 

Commissioner Hartung said he had a question on Item 3.16 but did not want the item pulled, so 
went ahead and asked his questions at this time. The question was whether the RTC has been 
successful in relocating the bookstore and other businesses yet. 

Mr. Brian Stewart, RTC Director of Engineering, responded that the process is currently 
underway, but not yet complete. 

Minutes 
3.1 Approve the minutes of the September 20, 2019, meeting (For Possible Action) 

Engineering 
3.2 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Engineering Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

Public Transportation/Operations 
3.3 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Public Transportation/Operations Report (For 
Possible Action) 

Planning 
3.4 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Planning Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

Administration 
3.5 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report (For Possible 

Action) 
3.6 Authorize the RTC Executive Director to enter into agreements with the 

recommended senior and co-managers for December 2019 refunding of Series 2010B 
and 2010C fuel tax revenue bonds (For Possible Action) 

3.7 Approve addition of new language to the RTC Personnel Rules to include: 1) Rest 
Periods 2) Meal Periods; 3) Responsibility for Time Reporting; 4) Standard Operating 
Hours; and 5) Flextime. Approve modification to Personnel Rule (11.2.3) Holidays – 
Fixed and Floating. Approve modification of RTC Management Policy P-22 Drug and 
Alcohol and change the name to Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace. Approve a new 
RTC Management Policy P-61 Social Media (For Possible Action) 

Procurement and Contracts 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 2 



 

 
     

 

    
  

 
  

   
  

  
 

          
    

             
 

  
  

   
  
  

  
  

  

  
  

 

 
   

      
 

             
 

   
 

  
    

  
 

 
   

   
  

           
 

 
     

     
 

3.8 Approve the award and agreement with Brasco International Inc., for the purchase of 
fifty (50) passenger shelters (ten (10) shelters per year for five (5) years); total contract 
value not to exceed $518,440; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the 
agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.9 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Kimley-Horn & Associates to 
provide design services for the Kuenzli Street Conversion Project in an amount not to 
exceed $225,414, authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For 
Possible Action) 

3.10 Authorize the procurement for the selection of Engineering Professional Services for 
the Design of the Sparks Boulevard Capacity Project (For Possible Action) 

3.11 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Lumos and Associates for the 
2020 Preventive Maintenance Program project for design services and construction 
management services in the amount of $784,720; authorize the RTC Executive 
Director to execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.12 Approve a Professional Service Agreement with Nichols Consulting Engineers to 
provide data collection services, pavement condition data uploads into local agency 
microPaver databases and update of the Regional Transportation Commission’s 
(RTC’s) Pavement Management System in an amount not-to-exceed $299,272; 
authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.13 Approve the purchase of two (2) electric fixed-route buses and two (2) bus chargers 
utilizing the State of Georgia Fleet Vehicles procurement contract number 99999-001-
SPD0000138 in the amount of $1,969,648; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 
execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

Inter-Agency Agreements 
3.14 Approve an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement (ICA) between RTC and the 

University of Nevada, Reno (UNR) Civil Engineering Department for research using 
Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) technology for the LiDAR Living Lab project 
in the amount of $450,000; authorize the Executive Director to execute the agreement 
(For Possible Action) 

3.15 Approve an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement (ICA) between the RTC and the City 
of Reno for additional utility conduits on Virginia Street during the construction of 
the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) Extension Project in an amount not to 
exceed $65,997, paid by the City of Reno; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 
execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

Resolutions of Condemnation 
3.16 Approve the attached Resolution of Condemnation authorizing RTC’s legal counsel to 

commence condemnation proceedings to acquire the full fee acquisition of the parcel 
known as APN 007-183-19 from Hotshots, Inc., a Nevada corporation, necessary to 
construct the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension Project (For Possible 
Action) 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Weber, which motion carried unanimously by 
those present, Vice Chair Jardon ordered that Consent Items 3.1 through 3.16 be approved. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 3 



 

 
     

 

    
   
  

 
    

  
 

      
 

 

   
    

   
 

   
 
    

 
 

 
   

 
 

  
  

   
           

 
 

 
    

     
 

     
  

        
    

 
 

    

   
 

      
              

   
 

Items 4 DIRECTOR REPORTS 

4.1 RTC Executive Director Report 

RTC Executive Director (E.D.) Lee Gibson spoke briefly on the following topics, some of which 
were upcoming at the time of this meeting: 

1. Stuff A Bus for Foster Children was held from 10 am to 6 pm on Oct. 24th at the Sam’s 
Club on Kietzke Lane. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

This event is in collaboration with the Washoe County Human Services Agency and Sam’s 
Club to support foster children to collect new and unused winter items, including winter 
coats, jackets, boots, shoes, socks, and blankets. With more than 700 children in foster care 
in our community at any given time, these items will help keep children warm throughout 
the winter.  Cash and gift card donations are also appreciated. 

Later in the day, the RTC is hosting a community meeting to present the draft RTC ADA 
Transition Plan.  

The meeting will be held at The Innevation Center at 450 Sinclair Street in Reno from 5 pm 
to 7 pm, with a presentation at 5:30 p.m.   The presentation will be livestreamed on our 
Facebook page. 

In September, the 2019 Metropolitan Planning Organization Certification Review was 
conducted by representatives from the Federal Highway Administration and the Federal 
Transit Administration. This certification is conducted every four years by reviewing our 
processes to implement our projects, programs and services as part of the federal mandates 
we are required to do. 

A portion of the review included a tour of our projects and a briefing from our community 
partners involved with the 4th Street/Prater Way project and the Virginia Street BRT 
Extension Project. (photos were shown on the screen) 

E.D. Gibson was proud to say the RTC has been certified through 2023 and received 
commendations for quality of the 2040 Regional Transportation Plan, implementation of 
the UPWP studies, incorporation of complete streets initiatives within projects, and an 
outstanding public involvement process as evidenced by the strong connection within the 
community. 

On Tuesday, November 5th, we are having a community meeting for the South Meadows 
Multimodal Transportation Study at the Zeppelin located at 1445 South Meadows Parkway 
in Reno from 5 to 7 pm. 

From the first meeting, there were 1,069 participants in the survey and we received nearly 
3,000 comments from them. At this meeting, we will provide an update about the analysis 
we did for the comments received. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 4 



 

 
     

 

  
  

 
     

        
 

   
      

     
 

      
  

   
   

 

    
 

 
   

     
 

            
 

  
  

 
   

  
 

  
 

 

   
 

 
 

   
    

 
 

   
 

  
 
      

            
  

A presentation will be given at 5:30 pm and will also be livestreamed on our Facebook 
page.  For information about the study visit rtcwashoe.com.  

5. The Nevada Veterans Memorial Plaza 5th Annual Benefit Dinner will be held on November 
7th at the Atlantis Paradise Ballroom at 6 pm.  To purchase tickets go to NVMP.INFO. 

6. On November 11th, Veterans Day, we are offering free rides on RTC transit services to 
everyone. We are proud to honor our veterans and their families for their service and 
sacrifices they have given. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 5 

The American Planning Association Nevada Chapter awarded Congressman Amodei with 
their distinguished leadership award, recognizing his contributions to the projects we have 
delivered such as the SouthEast Connector, 4th & Prater and the Virginia Street project 
which is now underway. 

He extended thanks and appreciation to Congressman Amodei for his support and 
partnership for the work we do. 

We are launching a new transit service on November 2nd .  RTC FlexRIDE is a curb-to-curb 
MicroTransit service which will operate in some areas of Sparks. 

The Board approved this 6-month pilot project and we are excited to bring this service to 
the community. 

To help the community learn about this new service, we are holding pop-up events within 
the pilot service area to teach people how to use the app and schedule their ride.  Dates and 
times for the pop-up events can be found on our website, social media channels, and RTC 
Customer Service at our transit stations. 

Also on November 2nd, we will implement a transit service change to improve efficiency 
and on-time performance for all of our transit routes.  A new Bus Book has been placed at 
your stations. 

Mark Maloney will share highlights of the service change during his transit agenda item. 

For your information, we have initiated a dialogue with community partners for our Human 
Trafficking Initiative. These partners include the Reno Tahoe Airport Authority, The 
Chamber, TSA and Homeland Security, Reno Police Department, Mayor Schieve and 
Assemblywoman Jill Tolles. 

We are developing a campaign to bring awareness to this issue in our community and will 
also implement training for our coach and paratransit operators. 

We will bring an update to you at a future board meeting. 

10. October 25th is the observance of Nevada Day. RTC administrative offices will be closed. 
All RTC transit services will operate on the regular schedule and Customer Service will be 
open during regular business hours.  

http:rtcwashoe.com


 

 
     

 

 
      

     
 

    
 

 
  

 
      

 
   

 
  

 
 

   
 

  
    

 

 
 

   
 

 

    
  

 
      

   
 

 
    

 
           

    
  

  
 
  

 
   

      
   

 

E.D. Gibson then announced his upcoming retirement. He has been with the RTC for 10-years and 
will be attending just one more Board meeting. 

Commissioner Hartung asked where the RTC is at in the Lemmon Drive process. 

Mr. Brian Stewart, RTC Director of Engineering, responded that a contract has been awarded to 
Jacobs Engineering for design of the project. 

Per Dale Keller, RTC Project Manager, design of the project should be complete by next summer 

suggestions for improvement. 

RTC Federal Report 

(2020).  Additionally, the RTC is working closely with the City of Reno and Washoe County to 
determine what the overall mitigation strategy is for Swan Lake for the active recovery. 

Commissioner Hartung then asked where Red Rock is in the Transportation Plan. 

Ms. Amy Cummings, RTC Director of Planning and Deputy Executive Director, said the widening 
design is to begin in the next five years. 

Lastly, Commissioner Hartung asked if there is any plan to extend Silver Knolls Blvd. so it will 
possibly connect with Red Rock in the Long Range Plan. 

Ms. Cummings responded that it is not in the current RTP but is on the radar for the 2050 Plan. 

Commissioner Weber asked if something can be put together to address the numerous traffic issues 
in the North Valleys. 

Staff said that they would meet with the Commissioner outside of this meeting to discuss ideas and 

Vice Chair Jardon, Commissioner Hartung and Commissioner Weber all thanked E.D. Gibson for 
his service to the community and the great things he has accomplished during his tenure with the 
RTC. 

4.2 

A written update is available in the staff report materials for this item and E.D. Gibson mentioned 
that there is a federal funding opportunity for $19.19 million for FFY 2019, so staff is working 
with partner entities about the possibility of putting something together for submission.  The FTA 
is very pleased with the progress on the Virginia Street construction and how smoothly everything 
went with the 4th/Prater project, so there may be a good chance of success. 

4.3 NDOT Director Report 

NDOT Director Kristina Swallow said that as a state, the pedestrian fatalities have gone down by 
69 as compared to the previous year.  Unfortunately, in Washoe County the fatalities have gone up. 
She added that there are 16 meetings for the joining forces campaigns which numerous entities 
participate, including the RTC. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 6 



 

 
     

 

 
            

    
  

 
 

  
   

 
    

 
 
 

    
 

 
   

  
         

     
   

    
 

     
    

    
 

   
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
  

 

Dir. Swallow described the manner in which avalanches will be handled in our area, including the 
Mt. Rose Highway.  There is a back-up plan being put together if, for some reason, the system in 
place does not work.  There are also some new snow plows and blowers being added to Mount 
Rose. 

Next, Dir. Swallow explained the federal requirement for renumbering of the exit numbers and that 
the updates to the signs is underway. 

She then reported back on some of the

The study should be completed by the 

  a warrant study is underway and should be completed in the first 

RTC should a signal be warranted, and provide a timeline. 

Round-about at Veterans and 341: there is a project in NDOT’s “out years” to address the 

Commissioner Hartung asked again to make all the flashers the same on Pyramid. 

  items asked about at the prior month’s meeting. 

The mid-block crossings on Pyramid:  the NDOT team is currently developing a pedestrian 
crossing matrix to guide decisions on pedestrian crossings overall and to make sure there is more 
consistency in when and how they are installed.  The matrix should be completed by the end of the 
year and then individual areas of concern will be looked at. 

Pyramid and Calle de la Plata: the advance warding flashers have been reviewed and there are 
three different types of flash that can be applied.  In September, the recommended guidelines were 
sent out to the local entities for comments and feedback.  
end of October and if the outcome is that all three versions will be used as appropriate for the 
conditions around the traffic signal, NDOT staff will communicate with the pertinent agency(s) 
before any changes are actually made. 

I-580, Exit 61 near In & Out:
quarter of next year.  Depending on the outcome, they will work with the City of Reno and the 

capacity issues and their staff will work with the City of Reno, Washoe County and the RTC when 
that comes up. 

Dir. Swallow said she will bring a presentation which explains the purpose for the three different 
flasher types. 

Commissioner Hartung asked about what the plan and timeline is for widening US 395 North. 

Dir. Swallow replied that construction of the portion from McCarran to Golden Valley will 
immediately follow the Spaghetti Bowl, Phase I.  The Parr Bridge should begin sooner.  

Commissioner Hartung would like to see the project go all the way to Stead. 

Dir. Swallow said that it can’t right away due to funding restrictions, but it will be in the second 
phase of the US 395 North project. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 7 



 

 
     

 

   
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
       

  
      

 
 

 

      
 

  
          

  
 

    
 

   
  

 
    

 
 

   
 

 

         
  

 

   
  

 
     

 
 

   
  

 

Vice Chair Jardon asked when the study on North McCarran would be completed. 

Dir. Swallow responded that she would have to bring that information to the Vice Chair at a later 
date. 

Commissioner Weber is concerned about what will happen to traffic when the bridge at Parr is 
taken down for rebuilding and suggested possibly doing it during a break in the school calendars. 

Dir. Swallow answered that the plan is to do it during summer when school is on break.  They will 
also try to avoid peak traffic times. 

Commissioner Hartung also requested that NDOT look into widening the section of Pyramid 
between Egyptian to just pass Alamosa.  He also complimented the Director on the expansion of 
the lane coming off of the haul road and said it is much safer now. He also pointed out that there is 
(or was) a No Engine Braking Allowed sign on the Pyramid Highway that is misspelled and needs 
to be corrected. 

The Director said all of the local priorities will be looked at during the One Nevada Plan. 

E.D. Gibson then said he had forgotten to mention in his report that a “summit” of traffic engineers 
in the area was convened to discuss the speed limit on the SouthEast Connector (SEC) and agreed 
to bump the speed limit to 50 mph. 

Mr. Brian Stewart, RTC Director of Engineering, confirmed that the consensus was to increase the 
speed limit to 50 mph.  He went on to explain that the turn pockets in the road are designed to a 
certain speed for deceleration before making a turn.  If the speed limit is too high, the vehicle may 
not be able to slow down far enough in advance and accidents could potentially occur. 

E.D. Gibson said an item will be brought to a future meeting which explains everything in more 
detail. 

Vice Chair Jardon said the public will not be happy that the speed limit will only be increased by 
5 mph. 

Mayor Smith said he had been told that the speed limits are up to the individual entities and the 
RTC does not get involved in that.  Why is the RTC now involved. 

Mr. Stewart responded that the RTC only convened the meeting so everyone could talk about it 
together and look at the SEC as a whole. 

Mayor Smith said he is on board with 55 mph and he had sent letters to “everybody” and they all 
agree with him.  Commissioner Hartung backed up this statement. 

E.D. Gibson said the number one goal is safety and it is important to listen to the traffic engineers’ 
and operation experts’ advice, so an item should be brought back. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 8 



 

 
     

 

  
  

 
   

 
   

    
   

 
      

  
  

  
  

 
 

             
 

    
   

            
 

 
    

    
   

         
     

 
  

 

 
  

  
 

  
  

   
  

 
  

    
 

  
  

give a video presentation on the options for expansion of the fixed route ride system, as set forth in 
the briefing materials for this agenda item. In looking at productivity, passengers per vehicle hour 
which is the standard measuring tool, is looked at for each route.  A great transit investment is 
generally any route that has over 30 passengers per vehicle hour.  He then showed the average 
passengers per vehicle hour for each of the RTC’s existing routes.  There are numerous factors that 
drive a higher potential ridership, such as population, poverty, zero vehicle households, age, and 
population density. 

Mr. Maloney continued, saying that the RTC receives constant requests for new service due to the 
population growth and suburban sprawl/land use.  The Sun Valley/Stead area will be the second 
phase of the MicroTransit demonstration, hopefully in the spring.  The biggest restraint to new 
service is funding.  After looking at the funds available and the options available, staff came back 
with a mostly cost neutral program and any additional dollars were put into the Bus Rapid Transit 
(BRT) program.  

He then listed the projects started or under way since the approval of the SRTP, such as the 
implementation of the Lincoln Line, the North Virginia Street BRT, weekday, Saturday and 
Sunday service has been interlined to improve efficiency and adjusted the running times, and will 
be implementing the FlexRide (MicroTransit) demonstration project. Additionally, route 9 is 
being modified to avoid duplication of service and provide more service to the medical facilities 
near the round-a-bout on the south end of Kietzke Lane.  The Sierra Spirit was pulled out of the 4th 
Street corridor in order to create the UNR, downtown and midtown direct service.  He added that 
ridership in the first month is doing better than the Sierra Spirit did over approximately 15 years. 

E.D. Gibson interjected to add that since the procured contract with Keolis, the RTC used a pool of 
funds that was invested into the wages and benefits of drivers, mechanics, road supervisors, etc. 
because it was found the RTC was not competing effectively in the area. 

Mr. Maloney said that there has been a lot of growth and urban sprawl in our area without bringing 

Vice Chair Jardon said that its usually the determined by the 85th percentile of the average speed 
that makes the determination of a speed limit. 

Items 5 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AND OPERATIONS 

5.1 Acknowledge receipt of the report on RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussions; 
direct Staff accordingly (For Possible Action) 

Mr. Mark Maloney, RTC Director of Public Transportation and Operations, addressed the Board to 

any additional funds to expand service.  Then he explained the financial benefit to MicroTransit vs 
fixed route, and the ability to provide service in the areas that are project to have a lower passenger 
per vehicle hour rating. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked why it is justified to buy two additional electric buses, as were approved 
in the Consent agenda, if MicroTransit is more cost effective. 

E.D. Gibson responded that they were purchased with federal dollars for use on the Virginia Street 
RAPID extension project once complete.  Additionally, the 60’ articulated buses are coming to the 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 9 



 

 
     

 

             
 

 
 

 

    
  

   
    

 
     

 
 

    
    

 

  
 

 
  

   
 

 

                  
 

 
  

 
  

 

   
    

   
 

    
       

           
             

   
 

   
 

  
   

                  
     

  

end of their useful life, and for a number of maintenance and operational reasons, the RTC is 
transitioning to the electric 40’ bus instead. 

Mayor Smith said it is time to put transit service out to the Spanish Springs area. 

Mr. Maloney suggested that MicroTransit would be a better fit for that area because the ridership 
would not be high enough for a full fixed route. 97% of residents in that area own a car and most 
likely do not want to give up the use of their vehicles; therefore, smaller vehicles with door-to-door 
service would be more efficient and cost effective. 

Vice Chair Jardon said that she believes MicroTransit would be best for her ward as well. 

Mr. Maloney went on to say that the RTC of Washoe County was just rated number eight out of 
100 US cities compared, using 17 relevant metrics.  Las Vegas came in at 51st, North Las Vegas at 
69th and Henderson at 80th . 

** Chairman Lucey arrived at 9:55 a.m.** 

E.D. Gibson added that if the Board wants to progress forward with new routes, additional buses 
will need to be ordered and it takes time and is funded via FTA Formula Capital Grants.  It is 
simply not possible to begin a new route in the next month.  He also believes the MicroTransit 
demonstration that’s coming up will be crucial to making decisions on future transit and routes. 

Commissioner Hartung believes that if it is built, they will come. Or . . . if routes are added, they 
will be used. 

Chairman Lucey asked if our ridership is increasing or declining and what is happening overall. 

Mr. Maloney responded that there has been a three to five percent decline. 

Chairman Lucey made comments on the multi-family homes in the Spanish Springs area and said 
that just because they have a car, it doesn’t necessarily mean everyone in the household has a car 
and may need transit.  He added that economic development is solely dependent on transit. 

The Chairman added that development is all going north and we do not provide fixed route 
services to those multi-family development areas, especially in Sparks. He then directed Mr. 
Maloney to “find a way” to make it happen and do not bring future reports providing options; just 
get it done. MicroTransit is acceptable for a temporary solution but asked how long it would take 
to get a full fixed route service in place. 

Mr. Maloney responded that it would take approximately 18 months and E.D. Gibson explained 
why it would take so long. 

E.D. Gibson also agreed that due to the population increase, the RTC needs to look at ways to 
provide more transit service where it’s needed.  The biggest issue is always funding, so staff will 
need to find creative ways to fund new transit. He added that he attended a meeting with Kristina 
Swallow where she gave a presentation on the parallels between highway needs vs funding and 
transit vs funding, and both have had an increase in need due to the recent population growth.  

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 10 



 

 
     

 

 
 
 

        
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

   
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

   
 

  
 

 

    
 

 
   

  
 

        
  

 
  

     
 

   
 

    
   

 
 

 
 
 

Vice Chair Jardon said she is looking forward to the November presentation showing best 
practices, demographics, etc. 

Commissioner Weber spoke on behalf of the North Valleys, saying that they have no amenities up 
that way, so anyone wanting to go for a nice dinner or shopping must head to another area and not 
everyone has a car.  She agrees with the Chairman that the RTC needs to find a way. 

Commissioner Hartung asked if a route will be added now that the new school has gone up in Sun 
Valley and a Food Bank distribution center is also right there. 

Mr. Maloney said that to take a bus from Route 5 to use for aforementioned area, Route 5 service 
would need to be pushed from every 30-minutes to every 45-minutes, which would degrade that 
service. 

Commissioner Hartung then asked what happens during midday, between commuter hours and is it 
possible to reroute Route 5 to the other neighborhoods.  Then Route 5 would stay at every 30 
minutes except during the detour time. 

Mr. Maloney responded that to help with school service, the morning session occurs during peak 
commuter service and the midday productivity on Route 5 is actually very productive. 

Chairman Lucey mentioned several other topics he would like to see during the presentation in 
November. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked if fuel tax can be used for transit.  The answer was no, per legislative 
restrictions. 

The Vice Chair said she had public comment on this topic so opened the meeting to public input 
and called on anyone wishing to speak. 

Ms. Sherry Jamason, representing the Food Bank of Northern Nevada, addressed the Board to 
speak in support of a new stop at Desert Skies Middle School. 

Ms. D’Lisa Crain, representing the Washoe County School District, addressed the Board to speak 
in support of a new stop at Desert Skies Middle School. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, public input was closed. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Vice Chair Jardon, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that receipt of the report be acknowledged. 

(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 11 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


 

 
     

 

 
 
    

   
 

  
   

   

   

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
       

  
 

  
   

 
 

   
   
   

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
    

 
    

   
 

   
       

 
 

 

5.2 Receive a report on the Regional Transportation Commission’s plan to demonstrate a 
double decker bus (No Action Required) 

E.D. Gibson said the RTC has been in three-way discussions with Keolis and Alexander Dennis to 
see if a double-deck bus would fit into our operating profile.  An agreement was reached to 
provide a demonstration during November for three-weeks on loan to do testing on bus height, 
weight capacity of our roads, etc.  There will be no farebox installed so it will be a free ride during 
this demonstration.  It will be serving a few different routes to gather information, such as the 
Lincoln Line, which will mimic service on Virginia Street.  Passenger capacity is enough to 
possibly be a replacement consideration for the 60 ft. buses that were discussed in the previous 
item.  The double-decker will also be tested out on the intercity route between Carson and Reno, 
along with Routes 5, 7 and 12. 

Ridership data will be some of the data collected and how well it works in our area.  As always, 
the RTC must look at efficiency and fiscal responsibility. 

Vice Chair Jardon would like to make sure UNR knows about the demonstration so the students 
can try it out, along with the RSCVA, the Chamber, and the Downtown Reno Partnership. 

E.D. Gibson said that the double-deck buses in Las Vegas make a lot of money on the wraps, so 
that could be a possible revenue source increase for us.  

Chairman Lucey, said that a large delegation of national educators will be in town in November 
which could be a perfect time to gather information from passengers outside of our region.  He 
would also like staff to find out what the event calendar is for our region to determine where to put 
the routes and when, such as if there is a concert at the amphitheater in Sparks. 

Commissioner Hartung asked if these are open-air and E.D. Gibson said they are not because there 
are simply too many risks involved with the type of passengers we carry vs the tourism passengers 
in London. 

No action was taken on this item. 

Item 6 ENGINEERING 

6.1 Acknowledge receipt of the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Extension 
monthly progress report (For Possible Action) 

Mr. Jeff Wilbrecht provided a quick PowerPoint update on the project, stressing the progress 
recently made and that southernmost third of the project road will be open to two-way traffic in 
mid-November.  He added that the project is ahead of schedule in many areas and on schedule in 
others.  

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 12 



 

 
     

 

 
 

 
  

    
  

 
 

 
 

    
 
     

      
 
          

   
  

   
 

   
 

   
 

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

      
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Michael Moreno, RTC Public Affairs Manager, then provided statistics on recent outreach 
success. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, which motion carried 
unanimously by those in attendance, Vice Chair Jardon ordered that receipt of the progress report 
be acknowledged. 

(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

Item 7 METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 

7.1 Acknowledge receipt of the NDOT Spaghetti Bowl Project monthly progress report 
and provide input accordingly (For Possible Action) 

Ms. Jenica Keller, NDOT Project Manager, addressed the Board to provide a PowerPoint update 
on the Spaghetti Bowl Express project.  She said that design is continuing for both phases of the 
project and currently, there is a technical team looking at the intermediate set of plans for Phase 1a 
and will be conducting a geometric review for Phase 1b later in the day. 

Ms. Keller also said that pertinent staff has been quite busy reviewing the unsolicited proposal that 
had been received.  She then went over the process required for the unsolicited proposal and 
concluded. offering to answer any questions. 

Commissioner Hartung asked what the current delivery schedule is. 

Ms. Keller said Phase 1a will construct neighborhood walls around the RSIC and relocate utilities. 
That should be under construction in about six months.  Phase 1b, the freeway and safety 
improvement project, will follow Phase 1a by about a year, so 2021. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked what the timeline is for the unsolicited proposal. 

Ms. Keller responded that it is being presented to the Transportation Board of Directors on 
November 18th . 

On motion of Mayor Smith, seconded by Commissioner Weber, which motion carried 
unanimously by those present, Vice Chair Jardon ordered that receipt of the progress report be 
acknowledged. 

(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 13 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com
mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


 

 
     

 

 
    

 
    

         
   

   
     

  
 

  
   

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
   

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

      
  

 
    

 
  

 
        

      
 

 

Item 8 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (For Possible Action) 

8.1 Legal Issues - Report, discussion and possible action and/or direction to legal counsel and staff 
following receipt of information on legal issues. The RTC may, consistent with 
Chapter 241 of NRS, decide to interrupt the public meeting at any time to 
conduct a closed session to confer with legal counsel and possibly deliberate on 
legal issues.  Any action on pending legal matters will be made when the public 
meeting is reconvened. 

Mr. Ferguson provided a note of clarification about Item 3.16, saying that Commissioner Hartung 
asked if (unintelligible) were the owners of the parcel noted but the correct owners are Hotshots, 
Inc. 

Mr. Ferguson then mentioned that the RTC had received a very favorable verdict in the RTC vs 
Bella Vista Ranch to use imminent domain to acquire water rights for the SouthEast Connector. 
He then thanked the RTC staff for all of their participation in this lawsuit. 

Commissioner Hartung asked for confirmation that there would be an attorney/client closed 
session immediately following this meeting. 

Mr. Ferguson confirmed. 

Item 9 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda.   

Mr. Andrew Samuelsen, representing the Truckee Meadows Bicycle Alliance, addressed the Board 
to request a buffered bike lane on Kuenzli Street.  He realizes that parking or a two-way turn lane 
may need to be removed, but believes it is worth it.  He even offered to give up the parking in front 
of his properties. 

Additionally, Mr. Samuelsen owns properties on Kuenzli and believes the design of Kuenzli and 
2nd street are holding back development. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

Item 11 MEMBER ITEMS 

Mayor Smith requested an item at the next board meeting to elect RTC’s Deputy Executive 
Director Amy Cummings as our CEO Elect once E.D. Gibson leaves, so there is a smooth 
transition. 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 14 



 

 
     

 

  
    

 
 

             
              

              
       

  
 

  
 

 
 

    
   

 
           

    
 

 
      

    
 

  
 

      
 
 
 

 
  

 

Commissioner Hartung asked for striping and a “Do Not Block Intersection” sign at the right hand 
turn queue at Pyramid and Emerson southbound.  It backs up and blocks Emerson from exiting 
onto Pyramid. 

Vice Chair Jardon augmented what Mayor Smith said, adding that she thinks we do need to 
appoint Ms. Cummings as interim and, at that same time, have a discussion about what the search 
criteria will be so that we have a very transparent, open and robust discussion about it. She wants 
to make sure that when staff brings something back that it’s agendized in a manner that the 
commissioners can talk about all those things. 

Commissioner Weber asked if a transit workshop can be held now that there has been so much 
growth in the area. 

E.D. Gibson invited commissioners to meet with him individually and said there have been issues 
getting a workshop scheduled.  He then asked the board clerk to schedule a workshop for 
December or January. The commissioner preference was January. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked if waiting for data to come in and having a workshop after the six month 
demonstration project for MicroTransit is over would be too long to wait.  The consensus was yes, 
too long to wait. 

Chairman Lucey asked staff to include a discussion pertaining to a potential requirement for 
developers to include the building of ADA approved bus stops when they are building new homes. 

Item 12 ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 11:06 a.m. 

______________________________ 
NEOMA JARDON, Vice Chair 
Regional Transportation Commission 

October 24, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 15 



 

     
 

  
 

 
  

 
    

 

 
 

  
 

  
  
 

  
 
 

 
 

    
         

  
 

     
   

   
 

  
      

 
   

  
 

 
   

 
  

      
    

 
   

 
 

 
   
    

   
 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

FRIDAY 9:02 A.M. November 15, 2019 

PRESENT: 
Bob Lucey, Washoe County Commissioner, Chairman 
Neoma Jardon, Reno City Council Member, Vice Chair 
Vaughn Hartung, Washoe County Commissioner 
Oscar Delgado, Reno City Council Member 
Ron Smith, Sparks City Council Member 

Lee G. Gibson, RTC Executive Director 
Dale Ferguson, Legal Counsel 

Kristina Swallow, Director of NDOT 

The regular monthly meeting, held in the Chambers of the Washoe County Commission, 1001 E. 
9th Street, Reno, Nevada, was called to order by Chairman Lucey. Following the roll call and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of our country, the Board conducted the following business: 

Chairman Lucey started the meeting by recognizing outgoing Executive Director Lee G. Gibson. 
He stressed how Lee has led the charge here at the RTC for the past ten years but has also been a 
leader in transportation across the state and at the federal level for decades. 

E.D. Gibson then thanked numerous contractors, NDOT and Mayor Smith, who is currently the 
longest serving RTC commissioner. He went on to thank the prior board commissioners who 
voted to hire him 10 years ago.  Then he acknowledged prior RTC executive director Greg Krause 
for setting the path to the success we’ve experienced. Lastly, he thanked several external partners, 
RTC staff members and his wife Maria. 

Mayor Smith commended E.D. Gibson for everything he’s brought to this organization and 
thanked him for his service. 

Vice Chair Jardon said that she admired how E.D. Gibson always kept his cool, even in the most 
contentious situations, as well as his support for all of the out-of-the box suggestions made, such as 
Stuff a bus for Seniors and the pink bus for breast cancer. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked E.D. Gibson for everything he’s done for the community and 
especially the RTC, adding that he has always been more accessible than previous executive 
directors. 

Commissioner Delgado said that even before he sat on our board, E.D. Gibson was always 
accessible to work with council members and others in the community; something he always 
appreciated.  He added that the intellect and demeanor of the RTC staff and leadership is a 
testament to Lee’s ability to lead others. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 1 



 

     
 

   
 

  
 

     
  

 
         

  
     

      
 

    
 

   
      

 
    

 
   

  
   

 

 

       
  

 
  

 
    

 
   

        
      

 
     

 

 
     

 
 

     
 

 

 
     

with SCATS and utilizing their services. This award is the first given for fiscal year 2020! 

Item 1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion unanimously 
carried, Chairman Lucey ordered that the agenda for this meeting be approved. 

Item 2 .1 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda. 

Mr. John Locke, local resident, addressed the Board to say that he is a driver for RTC/Keolis and 
believes the schedule that is being put out is not at all passenger friendly.  Drivers are only given 
one minute to load and unload a bus, there is just no sense in the schedule and it’s making 
passengers very unhappy. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

Item 2.2 ADVISORY COMMITTEES SUMMARY REPORT 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion unanimously 
carried, Chairman Lucey ordered that receipt of the monthly Summary Report for the Technical, 
Citizens Multimodal and Regional Road Impact Fee Advisory Committees be acknowledged.. 

Item 3 .1 thru 3.11 CONSENT ITEMS 

Chairman Lucey then presented E.D. Gibson with a crystal plaque, thanking Lee for his service. 

E.D. Gibson then added his thanks to Denise Thompson, Jane Starke and the RTC director team. 

RECOGNITION OF THE RTC BY THE NEVADA OSHA - SAFETY CONSULTATION 
AND TRAINING SECTION (SCATS) FOR THE NEVADA SAFE PARTNER AWARD 

Mr. Ray Fierro, Administrator for the Division of Industrial Relations, introduced Andy Giddings, 
Supervisor of the northern office of SCATS, and consultant Dave Murray, then presented a plaque 
for the Safe Partner Award and spoke in recognition of the RTC and Rob Reeder for partnering 

Engineering 
3.1 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Engineering Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

Public Transportation/Operations 
3.2 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Public Transportation/Operations Report (For 

Possible Action) 

Planning 
3.3 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Planning Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 2 



 

     
 

 
      

 
  

   
    

 

 
    

    
  

     
  

  
   

  
       

   
  

  
 

  
 

   
    

          
  

         
 

   
   

  
   

  
        
   

  
 

    
   

 
 

 
 

   
      

Administration 
3.4 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report (For Possible 

Action) 
3.5 Adopt a resolution requesting the Washoe County Board of Commissioners to issue 

revenue refunding bonds in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $75 million 
and providing other matters properly related thereto (For Possible Action) 

Procurement and Contracts 
3.6 Approve a contract with NextBus in an amount not to exceed $93,555 to upgrade the 

RTC RIDE onboard Global Positioning Satellite (GPS) trackers from 3G to 4G; 
authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.7 Approve Change Order (CO) No. 01, for the reimbursable “enhancement” scope 
identified in the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between RTC and the City of 
Reno, increasing the total contract amount of the agreement with Sierra Nevada 
Construction for construction of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) 
Extension Project, between Plumb to Liberty & Maple to 15th, by $222,600, for a new 
total contract amount of $47,445,552; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 
execute CO No. 01 (For Possible Action) 

3.8 Approve Change Order (CO) No. 02, for RTC directed changes to concrete sidewalk 
scope on side streets within the project corridor, increasing the total contract amount 
of the agreement with Sierra Nevada Construction for construction of the Virginia 
Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) Extension Project, between Plumb to Liberty & 
Maple to 15th, by $4,718, for a new total contract amount of $47,450,270; authorize the 
RTC Executive Director to execute CO No. 02 (For Possible Action) 

3.9 Approve Change Order (CO) No. 03, for RTC directed changes to the traffic 
information and operation systems on the project, increasing the total contract 
amount of the agreement with Sierra Nevada Construction for construction of the 
Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) Extension Project, between Plumb to 
Liberty & Maple to 15th, by $83,340, for a new total contract amount of $47,533,610; 
authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute CO No. 03 (For Possible Action) 

3.10 Approve Change Order (CO) No. 04 for TMWA requested water line improvements, 
increasing the total contract amount of the agreement with Sierra Nevada 
Construction for construction of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) 
Extension Project, between Plumb to Liberty & Maple to 15th, by $342,109, for a new 
total contract amount of $47,875,719; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 
execute CO No. 04 (For Possible Action) 

3.11 Approve an Administrative Settlement of $140,000 above the just compensation 
amount of $1,820,000, representing a total settlement offer of $1,960,000 for the full 
fee simple acquisition of the parcel known as APN 007-183-19 with HOTSHOTS 
Incorporated, necessary to construct the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension 
Project.  This Administrative Settlement shall be contingent upon the execution and 
delivery by HOTSHOTS Incorporated of all documents necessary to close escrow (For 
Possible Action) 

On motion of Mayor Smith, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that Consent Items 3.1 through 3.11 be approved. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 3 



 

     
 

 
     

   
 

 
    

  
 
  

    
  

   
       

    
 

              
      

 
   

   
 

 
 

    
  

 
      

    
 

 
 
 

     
 

       
        

     
   

    
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

 

Item 4.1 thru 4.3 DIRECTOR REPORTS 

Item 4.1 RTC Executive Director Report 

RTC Executive Director (E.D.) Lee Gibson spoke briefly on the following topics, some of which 
were upcoming at the time of this meeting: 

1. He gave a FlexRIDE Microtransit update, saying that the first week of the project far exceeded 
expectations.  The plan was to start with two vehicles and one back-up and a goal to get 100 
rides per day after the third month and 200 by the end of the sixth month.  Instead, there was an 
average of 93 passengers after the first week with a high of 159 passengers that Wednesday. 
Route 25 when it was being fully run, was averaging between 50 and 60 passengers per day. 
We are also averaging approx. half the cost of fixed route. 

2. The RTC will receive a Double Decker Bus next week and will conduct training with bus 
operators for a week. This is in preparation for a demonstration of the double decker bus. 

On Tuesday, November 26, the media will be invited to view and ride the bus in advance of the 
public demonstration, which is planned to begin on December 2nd and will continue for 
approximately three weeks.  The bus will operate on various routes and will be free to transit 
riders.  

Specific details will be announced closer to the start date through traditional media channels 
and our social media pages. 

3. On December 12th, the RTC will host the first community meeting and open house for the 
Arlington Avenue Bridges Project, to be held at the McKinley Arts and Culture Center from 
5 pm to 7 pm.  

A presentation will be held at 5:30 pm, which will also be live streamed on our Facebook page, 
to share information, answer questions and listen to ideas about the possible replacement of the 
two Arlington Avenue Bridges in downtown Reno as we begin the feasibility study. 

Information about the project was shared with the Reno City Council this week and will 
include a broad and extensive community outreach effort. Information about the project will 
be available at www.rtcwashoe.com. 

4. Also on December 12th, the 2nd annual STUFF A BUS holiday food drive will be held at Sam’s 
Club at 4835 Kietzke Lane in south Reno from 10 am to 7 pm.  

We encourage the public to donate non-perishable food items, such as canned foods, peanut 
butter, cereal and oatmeal, canned fruits and vegetables, juice boxes, kid-friendly snacks like 
granola bars, popcorn, animal crackers, and baby products such as formula, infant cereal and 
baby food.  

All donations collected will be given to the Food Bank of Northern Nevada.  

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 4 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/


 

     
 

 
   

  
 

   
 

 
 

  
        
   

 
          

     
   

 
   

 
    

 
   

 
  

               
   

   
 

   
  

    
   

    
 

  
 

   

  
 

  
    

 
          

  
 

5. On October 31st, the RTC joined Councilman Delgado, the Reno Police Department and others 
at Traner Middle School for a safety assembly with the students. 

Safety tips were shared with the students on how to be safe walking or riding to school, using 
crosswalks and to be seen at night using light colored clothing and lights or flashers on their 
person and bikes.   

In light of recent crashes involving two students at Traner, Councilman Delgado is working 
with the school and the neighborhood to bring attention to the importance of pedestrian safety. 
The RTC is supporting Councilman Delgado in this effort.  

6. There was recently a misspelling of a street sign on the Virginia Street Project. RTC’s project 
team took the opportunity to seize the moment and encourage the public to visit Midtown and 
support businesses within the construction zone. 

Item 4.2 RTC Federal Report 

A written update is available in the staff report materials for this item and Chairman Lucey also 
introduced Ms. Anja Graves, Partner of Cardinal Infrastructure, and Congressman John Porter 
(ret.), President and CEO of Porter Group LLC, who gave the update for this month.  

Ms. Graves began by reminding everyone that the RTC of Washoe County was one of only ten 
entities in the entire country who received funds from the FTA Capital Investment Grant Program 
($40 million for the Virginia Street BRT Extension Project).  The USDOT Build Grant allocations 
were just announced and no funds were granted to Nevada. 

She continued with updates on the federal budget and continuing resolutions related to that.  Also, 
the boarder wall and impeachment proceedings are causing issues with the appropriations process 
in Washington.  A bill was proposed that includes a rescission of approx. $7 billion dollars nation-
wide and would reduce funding for highway projects. There are many people in Washington, 
including the RTC’s delegation, who are trying to make sure the rescission is removed from any 
final bill before approval.  However, if it does go through, it could pose as a huge imposition on 
the state and the RTCs. 

Ms. Graves finished up, saying that it has been an both honor and a challenge working with E.D. 
Gibson, but always rewarding.  She added that Lee and his team have delivered almost a billion 
dollars in projects during his tenure. 

Congressman Porter then addressed the Board and said he has known E.D. Gibson for about 30 
years and it has been an honor on a personal and professional level. He went on to say that E.D. 
Gibson is one of the few people who has a depth of knowledge and a unique instinct to understand 
the community, but also an ability to understand the political process, and many representatives in 
Washington have great respect for him. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 5 



 

     
 

   
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

     
  

 
 

    
   

 

   
 

 
    

               
  

  
    

 
 

          
   

 
   

      
      

 
 

   
 

 
 

      
  

 
       

    
 

state is looking at a $105 million dollar impact, which is roughly 1/3 of NDOT’s federal funding. 
If that happens, projects will continue, but they may be delayed. 

Dir. Swallow went on with her usual report, saying that 215 people were lost to accidents in 
October, which is 74 less than in October 2018, so it is tracking better, but still too many deaths. 
She reminded everyone to be careful with it getting dark earlier now.  As a pedestrian, be seen 
with lighting, reflection tape, etc., and drivers need to be especially cautious.   A click-it or ticket 
program will begin Nov. 18th and run through the holidays to encourage seatbelt use. 

The Spaghetti Bowl Express project updates will occur when there is something to report, so may 
not be every month.  With that said, everything with the project is continuing on schedule and 
approval was received from the US Army Corps of Engineers for work around the Truckee River. 
Also, an unsolicited proposal was received in September to deliver the project via design-build, so 
that is the primary agenda item on the Transportation Board Meeting the 18th .  The options will 
include accepting the proposal and proceed with a sole source procurement; competitively bid the 
proposal; or reject the proposal and continue on as they have with the design-build. 

Avalanche control inspections have all come back clear with the exception of some minor issues 
such as carpentry, addressing airflow through a building. 

I-80 west of Reno has been completely repaved for the first time since 2003 and barrier rail 
improvements were added and they also began working on the installation of a new wrong-way 
driver detection system.  Rumble strips were also upgraded to a new standard to help with noise 
issues. 

Dir. Swallow then said her staff plans to bring a presentation in January on the driver warning 
flasher system that Commissioner Hartung has asked about. 

Next, Congressman Porter touched on the ongoing impeachment, saying that most rank and file 
members of the Senate and Congress are trying to get business done.  This is a good time to meet 
with delegation members because they are looking for positive initiatives and projects to bring 
attention to.  

He then offered to answer any questions and there were none. 

Item 4.3 NDOT Director Report 

NDOT Director Kristina Swallow started by saying that should the rescission not be repealed, the 

The No Engine Breaking sign has been replaced with the correct spelling of Braking. 

The Do Not Block sign and striping at Edmonton and Pyramid should be done right around 
January or so. 

NDOT staff met with the RTC to discuss both the McCarran and Mt. Rose corridor studies, 
amongst others, and offered to give RTC the funding to do a full corridor study of McCarran, but 
focusing on the northern quadrants. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 6 



 

     
 

 
  

       
 

 

  
 

 
 

     
  

 
 

   
 

  
   

    
    

  
 

    
  

  
 

   
 
    

   
 

   
  

    
   

     
 

  
    

 
 

 
 

 
   

 

Vice Chair Jardon asked for an update on the potential to have a school zone installed on Plumb 
Street, in front of Wooster H.S. 

Dir. Swallow said a report will be brought in December because she didn’t have all the information 
in time for this meeting. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked Dir. Swallow for looking into the advance warning system but 
added that the drivers in that area are very confused by the different flashes used.  He also thanked 
the director for using his Spaghetti Bowl photo in her presentation. Lastly, he asked for some kind 
of information to be provided on what the Spaghetti Bowl project will eventually look like when 
it’s done, what kind of property will need to be taken, etc. 

Chairman Lucey said many of the rural roads in his district are still NDOT roads, such as Huffaker 
Lane, Holcomb Ranch Road, etc., and NDOT has been out doing pavement preservation and 
repairs, but there have been problems with the contractor leaving a lot of clean-up to be done. 

Items 5.1 thru 5.3 Engineering 

5.1 Acknowledge receipt of the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Extension 
monthly progress report (For Possible Action) 

Mr. Jeff Wilbrecht, RTC Project Manager, addressed the Board to provide a brief presentation 
update on the project.  He said that two-way traffic will be returned on Virginia Street between 
Plumb Lane and Mt. Rose Street which will facilitate detours while the project moves northward. 
Most of the west side of the road has been completed between Mt. Rose and Center Street and now 
work will begin on the sidewalks on the east side, between Holcomb and Center Street. The 

NDOT will be leading the Mt. Rose study and will include the full corridor, including east of I-580 
to the round-a-bout. Interim improvements are also being considered, such as installing a raised 
median. 

The Parr/Dandini bridge impacts during replacement will be given instruction on a marathon tear-
down over a weekend and then construction during the night with consideration for safety as well. 

Dir. Swallow then wished E.D. Gibson all the best and has enjoyed working with him. 

round-a-bout work should begin in mid-January, weather pending.  Work has begun on some of 
the transit stations and on the N. Virginia portion of the project.  Overall, the project is progressing 
really well and almost $14 million of construction work has been completed in the Midtown 
portion of the project. 

(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

Vice Chair Jardon said the business owners are loving the new sidewalks that have opened up and 
the City of Reno is very happy with what’s happened with the project.  

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 7 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


 

     
 

 
   

 
 

  
   

 
        

 
 

    
  

   
  

     
    

     
 

 
 

    
 

 
  

 
 

  
    

 
   

 
 

 
   

  
 

  
    
   
  
   

 
   
   

 
 

Chairman Lucey said that he is very happy with the product so far and gave credit to the project 
team. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that receipt of the report be acknowledged. 

5.2 Acknowledge receipt of the Lemmon Drive monthly progress report (For Possible 
Action) 

Mr. Dale Keller, RTC Project Manager, addressed the Board to give a brief presentation update on 
the project.  He said that the project is just kicking off with exploratory work looking at roadway 
conditions.  This project is divided into two distinct segments.  Segment one is from US 395 up to 
Military Road where it will go from four lanes to six lanes and to improve multi-modal use ability. 
The second segment is from Fleetwood Drive to Chickadee Drive which will include safety 
improvements and operation mobility for future growth.  The design for both segments will happen 
concurrently and final design of segment one should be complete toward the end of 2020, with 
construction planned in 2021, dependent on funding.  Segment two will depend on the mitigation 
of Swan Lake as to how it will be built.  Upon conclusion, Mr. Keller offered to answer questions. 

Commissioner Hartung likes the idea of elevating the shared use path. He also believes the project 
should go all the way to Ramsey. 

(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Vice Chair Jardon, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that receipt of the report be acknowledged. 

5.3 Receive a report on the speed limit on Veterans Parkway/Southeast Connector (No 
Action Required) 

Mr. Brian Stewart, RTC Director of Engineering, addressed the Board to provide a quick 
presentation on this item.  The 45 mph posted speed limit was determined during the final design 
process and working with the local jurisdictions.  Considerations were as follow: 

• Designated Design Speed 
• Consistency of Veteran’s Parkway from Geiger Grade to Greg Street 
• 10 MPH Safety Factor 
• Future Development(20 Year Design) 
• Community concerns during design – noise, truck traffic, wildlife, no  corridor lighting 

A speed study was recently conducted which found the 85th percentile to be above 55 mph.  The 
RTC does not enforce or change the speed limits, so will work with the local jurisdictions to 
provide this report and the speed study so they can make the appropriate decisions.  He then 
offered to answer questions. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 8 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


 

     
 

 
 
  

   
 

 
    

   
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
                
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
   

  
  

 
 

   
   

 
    

 
 
 

   
  

 
        
 

 

Mayor Smith said he had sent letters to several leaders in the region requesting they all raise their 
speed limit to 55 mph and the City of Sparks would like to raise the bridge speed from 40-45 mph. 
He added that when the new housing development is completed, the speed limit in that area can be 
again reduced to 45 mph if desired. 

Commissioner Delgado said his constituents have a concern about the speed limit in the residential 
areas and would actually like to lower the speed limit in those areas. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked if the speed study was done at only one point on the road or in multiple 
locations. 

Mr. Stewart responded that the study was done in three different locations and the 85th percentile 
was above 55 mph in all of them.  The average was 58-59 mph. 

Vice Chair Jardon, Chairman Lucey and Commissioner Hartung agree with Commissioner 
Delgado that the residential areas may need to have the current speed limit lowered for safety 
concerns. 

(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

No action was taken on this item. 

A motion was then made by Commissioner Hartung to move Items 7.1 and 7.2 up to precede Item 
6.1.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Smith and carried unanimously. 

7.1 Discussion and possible action to appoint Amy Cummings as the Executive Director 
or Interim Executive Director; adjust compensation and provide direction on 
negotiation of contract terms and/or implementation of recruitment options (For 
Possible Action) 

E.D. Gibson reminded the commissioners that his last day is December 6th and during the last 
several years the Board has directed him to initiate and continue an agency-wide workforce 
development and succession plan.  There have been multiple successes since that plan was put into 
place, including the appointment of Ms. Amy Cummings as the Deputy Executive Director.  He 
then reviewed Ms. Cummings numerous accomplishments during her tenure at the RTC.  He 
recommends Ms. Cummings be appointed as the new Executive Director but understands it is at 
the Board’s discretion.  He said that whether Ms. Cummings is appointed the interim executive 
director or the executive director, he felt it important to include her background information, which 
is included in the briefing materials for this agenda item. 

Chairman Lucey said the commissioners would partake in a conversation on the options that were 
provided in the staff report. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 9 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


 

     
 

    
                

     
  

 
 

 
 

   
       

   
         

           
     

            
  

 
 

 
    

   
   

 
 

          
     

 
 

 
  

     
           

        
  

   
 

 
  

 
 

 
                

 
 

 

Amy have during his tenure on the commission.  Prior to their hiring, there were many issues 
within the agency and communication with the commissioners was not good at all. He added that 
he has seen Ms. Cummings deliver a special presence at public meetings that conveys a positive 
and caring image and a willingness to listen, she engages and works with citizens to find a solution 
when needed. He would like to continue on the path E.D. Gibson has set, which is why he would 
like to see Ms. Cummings appointed as the executive director. 

He added that if she is appointed and a contract is brought back in December, but she doesn’t 
perform the way the commission likes, she can be terminated within 30 days.  He doesn’t want to 
waste taxpayer money on a full recruitment when a perfectly qualified candidate is already here 
with a great track record. He then proposed an alternative to appoint Ms. Cummings for a one-
year term and then if she is not doing the job to the commission’s satisfaction, a recruitment should 
begin. 

Commissioner Hartung reminded everyone that E.D. Gibson was not the interim when he was 
hired; the interim, Derek Morse, did apply but did not get the job. He would like to appoint Ms. 
Cummings as the interim and open a recruitment.  He believes that the commission should have 
also been involved in the decision to promote Ms. Cummings to the deputy executive director. 

Vice Chair Jardon said she does not think anyone on the commission wants to have someone come 
in and “reinvent the wheel” at the RTC.  She then commended the staff on their experience and 
tenure. She would like to see a competitive, open and transparent recruitment, which is the best 
practice.  The Vice Chair also said her comments are not reflective of anything against Ms. 
Cummings or anyone else, and an open recruitment would help to avoid any potential cloud over 
the RTC.  She would like to see Ms. Cummings appointed as the interim and hold a recruitment. 
She is open to discussion on the type of recruitment. 

The Chairman started off saying that Ms. Cummings has done a phenomenal job at the RTC and 
can do a great job as the interim executive director; however, he also believes that this is a perfect 
opportunity for everyone to compete and would be unjust to not have an open recruitment that 
includes Ms. Cummings. 

He would like to appoint Ms. Cummings as the interim executive director and immediately begin 
proceedings of recruitment and identifying a process for the hiring of the next executive director. 

Mayor Smith said he is the one who had asked to have an item on the agenda appointing Ms. 
Cummings as the next executive director because of the successes he’s seen from both Lee and 

Commissioner Delgado complimented Ms. Cummings but added that he agrees with his colleagues 
that a competitive recruitment process would be the best, with Ms. Cummings being appointed as 
the interim. 

Chairman Lucey said that he disagrees with Mayor Smith and because the executive director is an 
employee of the Board, he would like the opportunity to hold a clear and transparent recruitment 
for the selection of their next employee. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 10 



 

     
 

  
          

    
       

   
 

    
    

 
              

   
 

          
 

 
  

   
 

    
  

 

   
 

 
          

     
 

 
  

 
  

   
 

   
 

   
    
  

 

 
 

 

     
 

 

       
  

 

Mayor Smith said he felt both Commissioner Hartung and Chairman Lucey were being 
disingenuous with their comments about not being part of the decision to promote Ms. Cummings 
as the deputy executive director because she’s been in the position for a year and they’ve never 
said a word about it. He added that he’s always been an advocate to save money on a search and 
hire within so that money can be better spent on training. 

The Chairman said he was now looking for a motion on what the Board would like to do with 
regards to the interim or executive director as it pertains to Ms. Cummings. 

Vice Chair Jardon made a motion that Amy Cummings be appointed as the Interim Executive 
Director and for staff to bring an agenda item in December authorizing a recruitment. 

Commissioner Hartung seconded the motion for discussion. He read the recommendation of Item 
7.1 and believes a discussion can occur at this time pertaining to recruitment options. 

E.D. Gibson said that some items may need to come back, such as a revised job description and a 
possible discussion about using a recruiter and, if so, how much does the Board want to spend, etc. 

Vice Chair Jardon then asked legal counsel for the cleanest way to take as much action and give 
staff as much direction as is possible today. 

Chief Legal Counsel Dale Ferguson provided suggested wording to revise the Vice Chair’s 
motion. 

Vice Chair Jardon then retracted her original motion and made a new motion to appoint Amy 
Cummings as the interim executive director until a permanent executive director is selected. 

Commissioner Hartung seconded the motion again for purposes of discussion because he’s unclear 
about the recommendations of Items 7.1 and 7.2 the way they are stylized. 

Chairman Lucey said that if this motion carries, the commissioners will then go into Item 7.2 and 
have a further discussion about the details of the recruitment process. 

The motion then carried unanimously and Ms. Cummings is now the interim executive director. 

For clarification, Vice Chair Jardon then modified her recommendation to appoint Amy Cummings 
as the interim executive director upon the departure of E.D. Gibson up until a permanent executive 
director is selected. 

Commissioner Hartung then noted that part of the recommendation was to adjust compensation 
and that was not done. 

Ms. Reich then said that in a situation such as this, and in the same manner as Washoe County, a 
10% increase is provided. 

Commissioner Hartung then made a motion to provide a 10% compensation increase during Ms. 
Cummings tenure as the interim.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Smith and carried 
unanimously. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 11 



 

     
 

 
  

    
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
      

 
   

 
  

   
   

    
   

 
  

  
 

  
  
   
 

  
 

  
 

   
   

 
           

  
 

 

  
 

   
   

 
  

 

7.2 Discussion and possible action pertaining to any appointment and/or recruitment 
necessary to fill the vacated position of Executive Director (For Possible Action) 

Chairman Lucey believes it is important that the RTC is run by someone who has the capacity and 
wherewithal to lead the organization into the future.  He then asked Ms. Angela Reich, RTC 
Director of Administrative Services, to provide all possibilities of what that recruitment might look 
like. 

Ms. Reich addressed the Board and referred to the slide in her presentation containing the options 
as she sees them. She first stated that the Board needs to decide if they want to hire an outside 
recruitment firm, keep the recruitment in-house, or another option if desired.  Based on that 
decision, these are the items for consideration: 

 Identification of qualifications and characteristics 
 Use or modify current job description 

 Advertisement 
 Timeline – How long open 

 What items applicants are required to submit (application/resume/cover 
letter) 

 Screening 
 Matching applicant backgrounds with requirements of the position 

 Initial Interview Panel and Scoring Parameters 
 Who will determine panel 
 Recommend top 3 candidates to interview with RTC Board 

 RTC Board Interview, appointment and contract negotiation 

Chairman Lucey said that this position will require someone who knows the issues pertaining to 
federal, state and local/regional government with regard to funding for roads and transit.  He would 
like to have Ms. Reich do the recruitment and post in the relevant association publications. He 
would like to get a process in place by the first of the new year. 

Commissioner Hartung said we do not need to hire a national search firm and Ms. Reich should 
handle it and bring the most qualified applicants back to the Board for final interview and 
selection. 

Vice Chair Jardon doesn’t want the job publication to be posted for more than 30 days and then 
made a motion. 

On motion of Vice Chair Jardon, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion carried unanimously, 
Chairman Lucey ordered that Administrative Services Director Angela Reich work with Chairman 
Lucey to compile and distribute advertising materials as soon as possible and bring a recruiting 
plan to the December 20, 2019, RTC Board meeting. 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 12 



 

     
 

   
 
  

     
 

   
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

        
  

 
   

       
   

 
    

  
 

  
            

    
       

  
          

   
 

   
     

 
   

 
          

 
     

 
 
 

    
  

 

Item 6.1 thru 6.2 METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 

6.1 Approve public and agency outreach process and schedule for development of the 
2050 Regional Transportation Plan (For Possible Action) 

Ms. Amy Cummings, RTC Deputy Executive Director and Director of Planning, addressed the 
Board and said she looks forward to working with them as the interim executive director, then 
explained the purpose for her request for approval of the outreach and schedule, adding that in 
May of 2021 there should be a 2050 draft RTP available. 

Ms. Cummings continued with explanation of the process steps and would like to implement a new 
group called an Inter-County Transportation Working Group who would meet quarterly over the 
next year.  It would include regional partners from Lake Tahoe, Carson City, Storey County, Lyon 
County, and Northwestern Nevada. Regular workshops and roundtables will continue, along with 
social media communications. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that public and agency outreach process and schedule for 
development of the 2050 Regional Transportation Plan be approved. 

6.2 Approve the RTC federal priorities and provide direction accordingly (For Possible 
Action) 

Ms. Amy Cummings, RTC Deputy Executive Director and Director of Planning, addressed the 
Board to say that this item is valued by the RTC’s congressional delegation as they move forward 
with reauthorization.  Priorities for the RTC include expanding the Safe Routes to School program 
to use those funds on high schools as well as grades K-8;  another is to fully fund the Highway 
Trust Fund and address the rescission that was mentioned earlier; support joint development 
initiatives through the Federal Transit Administration; and funding for RTC major projects on bus 
and bus facilities, including the Spaghetti Bowl, I-580, I-80, and Pyramid Hwy. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that the RTC federal priorities be approved. 

Item 7.1 thru 7.3 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 

7.1 Discussion and possible action to appoint Amy Cummings as the Executive Director or 
Interim Executive Director; adjust compensation and provide direction on negotiation of 
contract terms and/or implementation of recruitment options (For Possible Action) – moved 
up on the agenda per previous motion 

7.2 Discussion and possible action pertaining to any appointment and/or recruitment necessary 
to fill the vacated position of Executive Director (For Possible Action) – moved up on the 
agenda per previous motion 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 13 



 

     
 

      
    

     
  

  
 

     
 

 
      

 
     

     
 

 
 

   
 

   
  

  
 
       

   
     

     
 

     
 

   
 

  
      

 

       
 

   
   

 
  

 
      

 
 
 

 
 

 

______________________________ 

7.3 Legal Issues - Report, discussion and possible action and/or direction to legal counsel and staff following 
receipt of information on legal issues. The RTC may, consistent with Chapter 241 of 
NRS, decide to interrupt the public meeting at any time to conduct a closed session to 
confer with legal counsel and possibly deliberate on legal issues.  Any action on pending 
legal matters will be made when the public meeting is reconvened. 

Legal Counsel Dale Ferguson said he had no items for discussion at this time. He also thanked 
E.D. Gibson for the opportunity to work with the RTC and wished him the best in his retirement. 

Upon motion by Commissioner Hartung, Chairman Lucey seconded a motion to reopen Item 4.3. 

Commissioner Hartung asked NDOT Dir. Swallow to see if the trucks along the cut in the hill 
going out to Spanish Springs, doing what looks like core samples, belong to NDOT. 

Item 4.3 was then reclosed. 

Item 8 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda.   

Ms. Sondra Rosenberg, local resident, addressed the Board to comment on her history of a 
working relationship with E.D. Gibson, the discussions they’ve had over the years, and what she’s 
learned from him.  She added that he will be missed and assured him that the great partnership 
between NDOT and the RTC will continue. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

Item 9 MEMBER ITEMS 

Commissioner Hartung asked if there is a program in place for staff to submit suggestions or 
comments and if so, does staff understand that they have that opportunity.  The answer was yes. 

Chairman Lucey suggested that an item on that be brought to a future meeting. 

Chairman Lucey complimented E.D. Lee Gibson on everything he’s done and the knowledge he 
and his team have brought, and thanked him for his service. 

Item 10 ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 11:56 a.m. 

BOB LUCEY, Chairman 
Regional Transportation Commission 

November 15, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 14 




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































